Agreement between **Standish-Sterling Community Schools Board of Education** and **Standish-Sterling Educational Support Personnel/MEA-NEA** 2023-2026

Table of Contents

		<u>Page</u>
Agreement		2
Article I.	Recognition	2
Article II.	Association Rights and Security	2
Article III.	Rights of the Board of Education	3
Article IV.	Payroll Deductions	3
Article V.	Seniority	4
Article VI.	Working Conditions	5
Article VII.	Layoff and Recall	5
Article VIII.	Work Time	6
Article IX.	Vacancies	10
Article X.	Grievance Procedure.	11
Article XI.	Paid Time Off (PTO)	14
Article XII.	Other Paid Leaves of Absence	16
Article XIII.	Unpaid Leaves of Absence	16
Article XIV.	Retirement	17
Article XV.	Contract	18
Article XVI.	Scope, Waiver, and Alteration of Agreement	18
Article XVII.	Duration of Agreement	19
<u>Appendix</u>		
Α	Salary Schedule	20
В	Insurance Protection	22
C	Grievance Report Form	23

AGREEMENT

This Agreement entered into this 14th day of August 2023 by and between the Standish-Sterling Community Schools, Standish, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the "Board" and the Standish-Sterling Educational Support Personnel MEA-NEA, hereinafter called the "Association."

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I. RECOGNITION

- A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive bargaining representative as defined in Section II of Act 379, Public Acts of 1965, including all non-probationary, non-certified personnel, but excluding all supervisory, substitutes, miscellaneous and executive personnel as defined in MERC Election R88-C135. All personnel represented by the Association in the above defined bargaining unit shall, unless otherwise indicated, hereinafter be referred to as "Employees" and reference to male personnel shall include female personnel.
- B. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any non-certified personnel organization, other than the Association for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE II. ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND SECURITY

- A. Pursuant to Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965, the Board hereby agrees that every employee of the Board shall have the right to organize, join and support the Association for the purpose of engaging in collective bargaining or negotiating and other concerted activities for mutual aid and protection. As a duly elected body exercising governmental power under cover of law of the State of Michigan, the Board undertakes and agrees that it will not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any bargaining unit member in the enjoyment of any of the rights conferred by Act 379, or any other law of Michigan or the Constitutions of Michigan and the United States; that it will not discriminate against any bargaining unit member with respect to hours, wages or any terms or condition of employment by reason of his/her membership in the Association, his/her participation in any activities of the Association or collective professional negotiations with the Board, or his/her institution of any grievances, complaint, or proceeding under this Agreement, or otherwise, with respect to any terms or conditions of employment.
- B. The Board specifically recognizes the rights of its employees appropriately to invoke the assistance of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, or a mediator from such public agency.

- C. The Association and its members shall continue to have the right to use school building facilities at all reasonable hours for meetings, subject to scheduling by the Principal. No bargaining unit member shall be prevented from wearing insignias, pins or other identification of membership in the Association, either on or off school premises. Faculty bulletin boards, school mail, and other established media of communications shall be made available to the Association and its members with the exception of political issues.
- D. The Board agrees to furnish to the Association all information to which the Association is legally entitled.
- E. The Association shall be advised of any new or modified millage, bond, or tax programs which are proposed.
- F. The Association shall be advised of any new or modified millage, bond, or tax programs which are proposed.

ARTICLE III. RIGHTS OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

- A. It is recognized by all parties hereto that the Board, on its own behalf of the electors of the District, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws of the Constitution of the State of Michigan and the United States. It is further recognized that the exercise of said powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the Board, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of the judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Michigan and of the United States.
- B. The Association specifically recognizes the rights of the Board appropriately to invoke the assistance of the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, or a mediator from such public agency.
- C. Management's right to assign employees takes precedence over transfer requests and filling vacancies. However, management's assignment of employees shall not be for arbitrary or capricious reasons.

ARTICLE IV. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

A. Within fifteen (15) days of the beginning of employment, Administration shall notify the SSESP Secretary of any new hire. The Board shall continue to provide payroll deductions. Items to be deducted are not to be specified. To be a deduction, it must be approved by the Board of Education.

ARTICLE V. SENIORITY

- A. Seniority shall prevail in the Standish-Sterling Community School District as specifically set forth in individual paragraphs of this contract.
- B. Seniority shall be defined as length of service within the District as a member of the bargaining unit. Upon completion of the probationary period, accumulation of seniority shall begin from the employee's initial date of hire. In the event that more than one [1] employee has the same date of hire, position on the seniority list shall be determined by drawing lots by those affected. A paid holiday shall be counted as the first working day in applicable situations.
- C. Seniority in position does not carry from one classification to another. The following non-interchangeable occupational groups are agreed to: Custodian, Cafeteria, Bus Drivers, Special Education Drivers, Paraprofessionals, Clerical and Mechanics.
- D. **Probationary Period**. New employees shall be on probation during the first ninety [90] days worked. During this period he/she has no seniority and may be discharged. Upon completion of the probationary period, his/her name shall be placed on the seniority list retroactive to their date of hire.
- E. **Termination of Seniority**. An employee's seniority shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following:
 - 1. Voluntary quit.
 - 2. Discharge for just cause.
 - 3. Retirement.
 - 4. If an unpaid leave of absence is granted, seniority is frozen for the length of time the leave was allowed. Upon return to position, seniority will resume as of the last date the employee worked before taking the leave.
 - 5. Failure to return from a leave of absence or layoff, as scheduled, without permission of the Board.
 - 6. Any employee who in any one [1] contract year has ten [10] or more separate occasions of absence and misses thirty [30] or more scheduled workdays shall be designated as unsuited for regular employment and therefore terminated. If an employee has thirty [30] days of sick leave accumulated, this paragraph will not apply to said employee.
 - 7. Laid off for 24 months.
- F. The Board shall prepare, maintain and post the Seniority List. The initial Seniority List shall be prepared and posted conspicuously in all buildings of the District within thirty [30] workdays after the effective date of this Agreement with revisions and updates prepared and posted semiannually thereafter. A copy of the Seniority List and subsequent revisions shall be furnished to the Association.

ARTICLE VI. WORKING CONDITIONS

- A. Bargaining unit members shall not be required to work under unsafe conditions. Employees are required to report in writing, any and all unsafe conditions to their supervisors immediately. Employees will be given the supplies and equipment the Employer deems necessary to perform the job safely.
- B. The Board shall support and assist employees with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline of students in the employee's assigned work area.
- C. The Board shall provide reimbursement for the cost of licenses, or the renewal of licenses required for a Bus Driver to perform his/her job or assignment.
- D. Board agrees that supervisors or non-unit personnel shall not be used at any time to displace employees regularly employed in the bargaining unit unless permitted by law.
- E. Discipline and or discharge of an employee shall be for just cause.

ARTICLE VII. LAYOFF AND RECALL

- A. In the event that the Board in its sole discretion determines that a layoff is necessary, such layoff shall be from classifications selected by the Board and in numbers determined by the Board subject to the terms and conditions specifically provided for in this Agreement.
- B. Employees whose positions have been eliminated due to the aforementioned reduction shall have the right to assume a position in their classification for which they are both qualified and able to do the work, which is held by a less senior employee. In no case shall a new employee be hired in any classification while there are laid off employees who are qualified and able to perform the work.
- C. Employees shall be laid off by classification seniority, provided that the remaining employees are capable of performing the work available.
- D. Recall shall be in the reverse order of the layoff within the classification and shall be subject to the same conditions as the layoff.
- E. Notices of recall shall be sent by First Class mail to the last known address as shown on the Board's records. The recall notice shall state the time and date the employee is required to report to work. It is the responsibility of the employee to keep the Board notified as to his/her current address.
 - 1. A recalled employee shall be given five (5) calendar days, excluding Saturday, Sunday and holidays, to report to work.
 - 2. Employees recalled to a position involving the same or similar work for which they are qualified and able to perform, are obligated to take such work. An employee who declines recall shall forfeit his/her seniority rights and his/her rights and his/her employment shall be considered to be terminated.

ARTICLE VIII. WORK TIME

- A. 1. All employees working six [6] hours or more are required to have a one-half [½] hour, uninterrupted lunch break. They may leave the building if they so desire.
 - 2. Food Service Only: As determined by the Superintendent or the Food Service Director, if the workload for Food Service employees are as such that they are not able to take their one-half (1/2) hour uninterrupted lunch break during cafeteria working hours, they will be allowed to punch out at the end of their work day/shift and leave the premises. They will not be required to stay on the premises and punch out after the ½ hour lunch break.
- B. 1. The minimum call-in for emergency situations shall be two [2] hours at the employee's appropriate rate of pay.
 - 2. (a) If an employee is temporarily assigned by management to a higher paying position, the employee will receive the higher pay for all hours worked in the higher classification.
 - (b) Cafeteria Workers Only: Cafeteria workers will be allowed to move into a higher classification when a cafeteria worker is absent and will be paid at the rate of pay within that higher classification on their current step as long as the cafeteria worker(s) have the "Knowledge, Skills and Ability" (KSA) to perform the job. These moves will take place by building seniority.
- C. All bargaining unit members shall abide by the law governing snow days. If there is a change in the law, this Section of the Contract shall be reopened and renegotiated. In the event school is closed early due to weather, employees will be paid for time worked.
 - 1. All bargaining unit members, except custodians:
 - At the present time, these employees shall receive pay for the snow days which are reimbursed by the State. These employees will only be paid for snow days which are made up which they work and have not already been paid. If school is cancelled during the school day and these employees are released early they will only receive pay for the hours worked.
 - 2. Custodial Staff:

The nature of the work requires that these employees report. For this reason, a snow bank of twenty (20) hours pay is made available at the start of each year. The employees in this classification must attempt to get to work unless otherwise notified by the superintendent or his designee. Employees who do not report will be docked for the time missed. An employee who works at least four (4) hours may use hours from his snow bank to bring the total pay to eight (8) hours for the day. The employee will be docked all hours missed in excess of the twenty (20) hours provided for in the snow bank. Earned bank hours should be used when students are not in session and do not carry over to the next school year.

- D. **Secretaries** will work all days that school is in session, including Parent-Teacher Conferences and Marking Days.
- E. **Paraprofessionals** will work all days school is in session.
- F. Cooks will work each day school is in session.
- G. **Custodians and Mechanics** will work a regular five [5] day week, forty [40] hours per week. New 52 week hires after August 1, 2015 will not be guaranteed 40 hours per week, but will be hired and scheduled as needed. The District will be limited to three (3) part-time positions in each 52 week job classification. Custodians and Mechanics will receive the following paid holidays if they fall within their work schedules:

Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and the following Friday, the day before Christmas and Christmas Day, the day before New Year's and New Year's Day, Good Friday afternoon and Memorial Day.

The employer and the employee may mutually agree that alternate days may be taken in lieu of the prescribed holiday schedule. If mutual agreement is not achieved, then the days will be taken as follows: In the event that one of the aforementioned holidays falls on a Saturday, the qualifying employee shall have the preceding Friday off with full pay. If the holiday falls on Sunday, the qualifying employee shall have the following Monday off with full pay.

Custodians will work on Saturday when needed for a special function(s). The employer will seek coverage by members from within the classification first and if none are available, the least senior employee(s) shall be required to perform the work, if a substitute is not used.

The Custodians and Mechanics will have the following vacation time:

- 1 week after the First year
- 2 weeks after Second year
- 3 weeks after Ten years
- 4 weeks after Twenty years

Vacation benefits paid shall be governed by the following:

100%
75%
50%
0%

H. Bus Drivers will work each day school is in session. Routes will be selected two

weeks prior to the students first day of the school year by seniority. In the event an established route opens up during the year, any two [2] Drivers may change at that time. A new driver will be put on the third route until the end of the semester. At that time the routes having new Drivers will be opened to all Drivers. Seniority prevails.

- 1. Extra Trips. All trips to be assigned by seniority. Assigned drivers will be responsible for the trip or find their replacement. All school events/trips for which transportation is being provided by the school district that are held within a 75 mile radius of the school district's Superintendent's office shall be offered to the transportation staff for coverage. Further, it is understood that it is the employer's preference to use staff to provide transportation for other events/trips of greater distances, however, the employer shall retain the right to utilize other means of transportation coverage (such as charter buses) as is allowed by law for trips which could include, but would not necessarily be limited to:
 - Post season athletic events or student body trips,
 - Trips that are paid for with non-district funds,
 - Events/trips paid for by parents, booster clubs, and local businesses, etc.

Any trip that is canceled with less than a twenty-four (24) hour notice the scheduled driver will receive compensation for the trip, provided that the driver is unable to drive their normal scheduled route.

- 2. **Exception**. If a trip is scheduled to leave before the assigned Driver returns from his/her regular run, that Driver may be passed over and given a trip at a later date that will not interfere with his/her run. It will be the Driver's option to be passed over or take the trip with a deduct for his/her regular run. A Driver may not pass over more than two [2] trips.
- 3. Drivers directed to attend mandatory training will be paid at the rate of Eighteen Dollars (\$18.00) per hour. Drivers directed to participate in mandatory drug/alcohol testing shall receive a stipend of Eighteen Dollars (\$18.00).
- 4. On bid day, at the beginning of the school year, the Career Center Driver must take the lowest paying mile route (even if changing routes is necessary) and will keep that route for the year. The 2nd rotation for the Career Center will be for 10 days, by seniority.
- 5. Drivers receiving training paid for by Standish- Sterling Community Schools will be required to work for the District for a minimum of two (2) years.
- I. Any bargaining unit member in the Standish-Sterling system shall be discouraged from taking any extended time off during the school year. This section does not pertain to custodians or mechanics.
- J. The District will provide 3 hours, outside of the regular scheduled workday, at their hourly rate, for staff, except custodians and mechanics, to complete the required Safe School Trainings.

Bus Drivers will be paid for 6 hours, at the rate of Eighteen (\$18.00) per hour, outside of the regular scheduled workday, to complete the Drivers meeting, Safe Schools Training, and to contact every parent on their route to notify them of the scheduled pickup and drop-off time of students.

K. Medical Paraprofessional:

A paraprofessional responsible for a student whose needs include, but not limited to, routine medical procedures. Administration will determine the severity of the medical needs that a student may require and determine if the student will require a medical paraprofessional.

ARTICLE IX. VACANCIES

- A. A vacancy shall be defined as a position which the Board of Education intends to fill and no bargaining unit member has a Contractual claim.
- B. Vacancies shall be posted in each school building for five (5) workdays and given the appropriate distribution. The posting will include the job title, minimum qualifications, location, rate of pay and application deadline.
- C. Vacancies shall be filled on the basis of certification [where appropriate], experience, educational background, test scores where applicable, and evaluations and other relevant factors. It is agreed that the filling of any position will be governed by the principle of providing the best person for the position. In those instances where two [2] or more employees are equal based upon the above criteria, seniority will be the determining factor. Vacancies may be filled on a temporary basis until a final decision is made. If the temporary appointment exceeds ninety [90] calendar days, the Union may request in writing the reasons therefore and the circumstances must be unusual.
- D. In the event the vacancy is awarded to a current employee, that employee shall have thirty [30] calendar days from the start date of the position to determine whether or not he/she wishes to remain in the new position. An employee can only use the above thirty (30) day trial period one (1) time during their career with the Standish-Sterling Community School District. This time period may be extended by mutual agreement of both parties. If he/she decides to return to his/her former position, he/she may do so without the loss of seniority. The Employer has sixty [60] days to determine whether or not the employee can satisfactorily perform the new duties. If it is determined by the Employer that the employee cannot perform the new duties satisfactorily, he/she may be returned to his/her former position. There will be no loss of seniority to the employee.
- E. In the event the vacancy is awarded to a current employee and that employee remains in that position, the position vacated by the current employee shall then be posted. The procedure for filling the vacancy shall be as outlined in [D] above.
- F. Vacancies caused by the awarding of a position in paragraph [E] above shall be filled by appointment of the Superintendent of Schools.
- G. Temporary vacancies shall be defined as a vacancy created by the absence of an employee maintaining a Contractual claim to a position. Such vacancies may be temporarily filled by the Superintendent of School

ARTICLE X. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- A. A "grievance" is a claim that there has been a violation, misinterpretation, or inequitable application of the specific and expressed terms of the Agreement. The Standish-Sterling ESP and employees agree not to process a grievance in which the same or similar issue is being processed to the Michigan Employment Relations Commission, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Fair Employment Practices Commission or any other judicial or quasi-judicial body.
- B. In the event that a member believes there is a basis for a grievance, he/she shall first discuss the alleged grievance with his/her Building Principal, either personally or accompanied by his/her Association Representative.
- C. If, as a result of the informal discussion with the Building Principal a grievance still exists, he/she may invoke the formal Grievance Procedure through the Association on the designated form, signed by the grievant and a representative of the Association the grievance form shall be available from the Association Representative in each building. A copy of the grievance form shall be delivered to the Principal. If the grievance involves more than one [1] school building, it may be filed with the Superintendent, or a representative designated by him.
- D. The grievance must be filed in writing within seven [7] workdays of the date in which the grievant(s) would reasonably have obtained knowledge of the alleged violation. The principal shall then meet with the Association in an effort to resolve the grievance within seven [7] workdays. The Principal shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within seven [7] workdays of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association.
- E. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance, or if no disposition has been made within seven [7] workdays of such meeting, the grievance shall be transmitted to the Superintendent. Within seven [7] workdays, the Superintendent or his/her designee shall meet with the Association on the grievance and shall indicate his/her disposition of the grievance in writing within seven [7] workdays of such meeting, and shall furnish a copy thereof to the Association.
- F. If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance by the Superintendent or his/her designee, or if no disposition has been made within ten [10] calendar days of such meeting, the grievance may be submitted to arbitration within ten [10] calendar days of such answer or when such answer was to be given. Neither party shall be permitted to insert any issues into the Arbitration process that have not been brought forth during the Grievance Procedure.

- G. The Arbitrator must be a person mutually selected and agreeable, but if none is so selected and agreeable, he/she shall be selected by the parties from a list of fifteen [15] names furnished in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association [AAA]. Either by mutual agreement or from which list each party shall be permitted to strike alternately seven [7] names, with the requesting party striking first, and remaining Arbitrator shall thereupon be accepted. Upon receipt of the list of fifteen [15] names, the parties will no later than ten [10] days after said receipt select an arbitrator as described above. In the event one party refuses to participate in the selection process, the other party may submit its seven [7] deletions from the list to AAA and AAA will select the Arbitrator from the remaining names.
 - Powers of the Arbitrator. It shall be the function of the Arbitrator and he/she shall be so empowered, except as his/her powers are limited below, after due investigation, to make a decision in cases of alleged violation of the specific terms of this Agreement.
 - a) He/she shall have no power to add to, subtract from, disregard, alter, or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
 - b) He/she shall have no power to establish wage rates or to change any rate.
 - c) He/she shall have no power to rule on the termination of service or failure to re-employ any probationary employee.
 - d) He/she shall have no power to change any practice, policy or rule of the Board of Education, nor to substitute his/her judgment for that of the Board as to the reasonableness of any such practice, policy, rule or any action of the Board.
 - e) His/her powers shall be limited to deciding whether the Board has violated the express Article or Sections of this Agreement, it being understood that any matter not specifically set forth herein remains within the reserved rights of the Board.
 - f) In rendering decisions, an Arbitrator shall give due regard to the responsibility of management and shall construe the Agreement that there will be no interference with such responsibilities, except as they may be specifically conditioned by this Agreement. Decisions of the Arbitrator will be final and binding on both parties.
 - g) In the event that a case is appealed to an Arbitrator on which he/she has no power to rule, it shall be referred back to the parties without decision or recommendation on its merits.
 - h) The impartial Arbitrator shall have the authority to order full, partial, or no compensation for time lost subject to items a) through g) in this Section.
 - i) Only one [1] grievance may be submitted to an Arbitrator selected, unless by written mutual agreement of the parties. This paragraph does not prohibit the Arbitrator from ruling on the arbitrability of an issue and then the issue.

- j) If a scheduled arbitration case is postponed on less than one [1] week's notice to the other party, the party requesting the postponement will pay any and all Arbitrator charges caused by the postponement.
- k) The Union will give the Superintendent five [5] working days advance notice of employees it needs to be excused from work to attend the arbitration hearing.
- Neither party shall be permitted to assert in such arbitration proceedings any ground or to rely on any evidence not previously disclosed to the other party. Unless the arbitrator determines that good cause exist to do so.
- m) The Arbitrator may not grant a grievance which in effect grants the Union that which it attempted to bargain into the Agreement but failed to do so.
- n) The decision of the Arbitrator must be rendered in writing within thirty [30] calendar days of the closing of the hearing.
- 2. **Fees and Expenses**. The fees and expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the losing party. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring them, and neither party shall be responsible for the expenses of its attendees and/or witnesses called by the other.
- H. The time limits provided in this Article shall be strictly observed, but may be extended by written agreement of both parties.

Article XI. PAID TIME OFF (PTO)

- A. The amount of Paid Time Off (PTO) for each classification is stated below. These PTO days shall be credited to the employee at the rate of one-half [½] day per pay period until the amount allocated is reached. PTO will be paid as accumulated in the Contract year.
 - 1. Custodians, Clerical and Mechanic: ten (10) days per year.
 - 2. Bus Drivers, Cooks and Paraprofessionals: ten (10) days per year.
- B. The Board shall furnish each employee with a written statement annually which sets forth the total accumulated PTO. The number of PTO days not used during the year shall be placed as a credit to the employee. The maximum accumulation for all classifications is sixty-five (65) days.
- C. If there is a question of doubt regarding the illness of the employee, the Superintendent may require a doctor's statement verifying the illness, or may require the employee to submit to a medical examination before PTO is allowed.
- D. Any employee who is hurt on the job shall receive their full pay for that day, and it shall not be charged against their PTO.
- E. An employee whose personal illness extends beyond the period compensated under this Article may be granted a leave of absence without compensation for the balance of the school year. This leave may be renewed upon the request of the employee. A substitute, if required, will be hired for the duration of this leave and upon return from leave, the employee will be assigned to the same or similar employment as available.
- F. Any employee who achieves a perfect attendance record in a given school year will be paid a stipend of One Hundred Fifty Dollars [\$150.00] at the end of the school year. An employee having reached the maximum allowable accumulation of PTO and takes no more than two [2] PTO days in a given year shall be paid a stipend of One Hundred Dollars [\$100.00] at the end of the school year. Funeral Days for immediate family, as defined in Article XII B (excluding extensions), and Jury Duty will not count against Perfect Attendance.
- G. Employees who are not scheduled to work during holiday breaks, may request up to a maximum of 10 PTO days per school year.
 - 1. As long as employee requests days in writing by December 1st for Christmas break, and March 1st for spring break.
 - 2. Days will be paid out on the next regular payroll, 15 workdays after the last day of each break period.
 - 3. No special payroll will be done for days during the scheduled breaks.

- The number of PTO days requested cannot exceed the amount of days during the break period or the amount of PTO days an employee currently has accumulated.
- 5. Days will continue to be earned (.5) half of a day per pay period, no front loading.
- Using PTO days during holiday breaks which are non-scheduled work days, are non-reportable compensation days according to the office of retirement services (ORS) for retirement purposes.
- 7. Due to the nature of working for a school district and the importance of having employees be at work so as to not adversely affect school operations and/or disrupt the educational process, any suspected abuse of using PTO days will be investigated by the district and may lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination.
- H. Employees must make application at least forty-eight [48] hours in advance of using PTO time, unless absence is due to sudden illness. Generally, at the discretion of the District, no more than two [2] PTO days will be authorized throughout the District within each classification on any given workday.
 - Such days will be granted on the basis of first-received, first-granted. Requests for such days cannot be made more than nine [9] months in advance of the date requested.
- I. For scheduled work days, employees will be limited to a one (1) time use per school year of five (5) consecutive PTO work days. For the purpose of the five (5) consecutive PTO work days to be used one (1) time per year, the following are exclusions: All documented medical absences and special circumstances as approved by the Superintendent or their designee.
- J. All employees will be limited to using only ten (10) PTO days per school year. In the event of catastrophic health emergencies, an employee shall receive the approval from the Superintendent to use more than ten (10) PTO days before they are used. Failure to receive the Superintendent's approval before using days over ten (10), will result in those days being deduct days and not paid PTO days. (Excludes Holiday break paid PTO days).

ARTICLE XII. OTHER PAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- A. **Jury Duty**. An employee called for jury duty shall be paid the difference between the juror's pay and his/her salary.
- B. **Funeral/Bereavement**. A maximum of five [5] days per instance of a death in the immediate family: spouse, mother, father, child, brother, sister, parent-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, grandchildren. Extension may be granted by the Superintendent, but any extension that is granted shall be deducted from sick leave days.
 - a) An employee may take one [1] day per year for attendance at the funeral service of a person whose relationship to the employee warrants such attendance.
 - b) Unused funeral/bereavement leave time shall not be cumulative.
 - c) Days used: Use of the five (5) days shall be connected to the business related to attendance at the funeral and/or issues related to said participation. By example this may include travel, funeral planning and attendance at the actual funeral.

ARTICLE XIII. UNPAID LEAVES OF ABSENCE

- A. An unpaid leave of absence is a written authorized absence from work for an extended period of time and without compensation. A leave shall be granted, denied, or extended at the sole discretion of the Board, or its designee, upon written request from the employee who shall state the reason for such leave on the application. Only an employee who has worked continuously for the Board for a period of at least one [1] year shall be granted a leave. Unpaid leaves of absence shall be subject to the following conditions:
 - 1. Leaves requested due to illness must be accompanied by a physician's certificate that the employee is unable to work and the reason therefore.
 - 2. All leave requests must include the exact date on which the leave begins and the exact date on which the employee is to return to work.
 - If an employee obtains a leave of absence for a reason other than that stated at the time the request is made, the employee will be terminated from employment without recourse.
 - 4. Employees shall not accept employment elsewhere while on leave of absence unless agreed to by the Employer. Acceptance of employment or working for another employer while on leave of absence shall result in immediate and complete loss of employment without recourse.
 - 5. Leaves may be renewable upon request of the employee. In no event will the duration of the leave exceed the end of the school year.
 - 6. Time absent on leave shall not be counted as time at work for any purpose except as herein provided to the contrary.

- B. Upon return from a leave of absence, said employee shall be reemployed at work generally similar to that which the employee last performed and at the prevailing rate of pay for that job, if available.
- C. An employee on leave of absence, who does not return to work upon the expiration of the approved leave without prior approval from the Superintendent (or his/her designee), shall cease to be an employee and that employee's seniority shall automatically be terminated, unless the Superintendent (or his/her designee) in his sole discretion, determines that good cause existed for the employee's failure to return as scheduled following the leave.

ARTICLE XIV. RETIREMENT

A. In recognition of service to the School District, a terminal leave pay per the schedule below will be paid upon retirement of an employee who has been employed by the Standish-Sterling Community School District for ten [10] or more years, provided he/she meets the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System's regulations. This applies to those employees who have accumulated sick leave as follows:

20 – 29 PTO Days = \$1,000 30 – 40 PTO Days = \$1,500 41 – 48 PTO Days - \$2,000 49-56 PTO Days = \$2,500 57-64 PTO Days = \$3,000 65 - + PTO Days = \$3,500

ARTICLE XV. CONTRACT

- Copies of this Agreement shall be printed at the expense of the Board and presented to all employees now employed or hereafter employed by the Board during the duration of this Agreement. The Board shall provide a disk copy of the Agreement, at no cost to the Association.
- 2. Wherever the Superintendent or the Board of Education is used they may appoint a designee.
- School Improvement. Members of this unit shall be invited to participate in school improvement activities. Participation in school improvement activities shall be voluntary.
- 4. Job Descriptions. Union members, who desire to do so, may submit their recommendation as to their individual job description. When new job descriptions are adopted by the Board of Education, a copy shall be provided to the Union.
- 5. No changes in this Agreement are binding unless initialed and ratified by both parties.
- 6. No past practice of any type shall be recognized or acknowledged unless it is committed to writing and incorporated into this Agreement.
- 7. An emergency financial manager appointed under the Local Government and School District Fiscal Accountability Act, 2011 PA 4, MCL 141.1501 to 141.1531 may reject, modify, or terminate this Agreement as provided therein.

ARTICLE XVI. SCOPE, WAIVER, AND ALTERATION OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement is the full and complete agreement between the Board and the Association and can be modified only by the signed written agreement of the parties. Its terms supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings of the parties.
- B. The wavier of any breach or condition of this Agreement by either party shall not constitute a precedent in the future enforcement of the terms and conditions herein.
- C. If any provision of this Agreement or any supplement thereto should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be restrained by such tribunal, the remainder of this Agreement and Supplement shall not be affected thereby, and the parties shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision.

ARTICLE XVII. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement, as negotiated and submitted in its written form and ratified, constitutes the Agreement between the parties for its term, and shall become effective when ratified and signed by the parties, and shall continue in full force and effect and be legally binding on the parties hereto until June 30, 2026.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed this 14th day of August 2023.

STANDISH-STERLING COMMUNITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION By:

Allen Schmidt, Board President

Darren S. Kroczaleski, Superintendent

STANDISH-STERLING EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT PERSONNEL/MEA-NEA

By:

Christina Briggs, President

Tonja Hinkston, UniServ Director

APPENDIX A

Custodians		3%	3%	2%
	Current	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Year 1	\$ 15.85	\$ 16.33	\$ 16.82	\$ 17.15
Year 2	\$ 16.35	\$ 16.84	\$ 17.35	\$ 17.69
Year 3	\$ 17.50	\$ 18.03	\$ 18.57	\$ 18.94
Third Shift Premium	\$ 0.57	\$ 0.59	\$ 0.60	\$ 0.62

Secretaries		3%	3%	2%
	Current	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Year 1	\$ 14.95	\$ 15.40	\$ 15.86	\$ 16.17
Year 2	\$ 16.00	\$ 16.48	\$ 16.97	\$ 17.31
Year 3	\$ 17.65	\$ 18.18	\$ 18.72	\$ 19.10

Paraprofessionals		3%	3%	2%
	Reset	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Year 1	\$ 14.75	\$ 15.19	\$ 15.65	\$ 15.96
Year 2	\$ 15.50	\$ 15.97	\$ 16.44	\$ 16.77
Year 3	\$ 16.50	\$ 17.00	\$ 17.50	\$ 17.85
Medical Premium		\$ 0.50	\$ 0.52	\$ 0.53

Cafeteria Workers		3%	3%	2%
	Current	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Head Cook				
Year 1	\$ 16.90	\$ 17.41	\$ 17.93	\$ 18.29
Year 2	\$ 17.85	\$ 18.39	\$ 18.94	\$ 19.32
Assistant Cook	Reset			
Year 1	\$ 14.50	\$ 14.94	\$ 15.38	\$ 15.69
Year 2	\$ 15.50	\$ 15.97	\$ 16.44	\$ 16.77
Cook's Helper	Reset			
Year 1	\$ 13.50	\$ 13.91	\$ 14.32	\$ 14.61
Year 2	\$ 14.00	\$ 14.42	\$ 14.85	\$ 15.15
	Current			
Extra Work Outside of Normal Work Hours	\$ 15.15	\$ 15.60	\$ 16.07	\$ 16.39
When Reimbursed at the Gov. Food Program Rate*	\$ 11.52	\$ 11.86	\$ 12.22	\$ 12.46
*If USDA reimburseme	ent rate is decrease	ed, wages will be de	creased according	ly.

Bus Drivers		3%	3%	2%
	Current	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
First 30 Miles AM Route	\$ 36.50	\$ 37.60	\$ 38.72	\$ 39.50
First 30 Miles PM Route	\$ 36.50	\$ 37.60	\$ 38.72	\$ 39.50
Total Base Pay Per Day	\$ 73.00	\$ 75.19	\$ 77.45	\$ 78.99
Miles Over First 30 Miles Per Run	\$ 0.99	\$ 1.01	\$ 1.05	\$ 1.07
Extra Trips*				
Driving Time/Wait Time	\$ 15.85	\$ 16.33	\$ 16.82	\$ 17.15
Career Center Per Day	\$ 83.40	\$ 83.90	\$ 84.40	\$ 84.90
*Minimum pay one (1) hour driving time				

Career Center Pay reflects the agreed \$ 0.50 increase for each year of the contract rather than a percentage increase.

Mechanic		3%	3%	2%
	Current	2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026
Year 1	\$ 17.70	\$ 18.23	\$ 18.78	\$ 19.15
Year 2	\$ 18.50	\$ 19.06	\$ 19.63	\$ 20.02
Year 3	\$ 19.30	\$ 19.88	\$ 20.48	\$ 20.88
Head Mechanic Premium	\$ 2.24	\$ 2.31	\$ 2.38	\$ 2.42

Parties agree to reconvene for wages only if minimum wage increases above current wage scale for the impact of minimum wage.

Appendix B

Insurance Protection

A. 1. The Board shall pay the amount stipulated below per month for health care coverage carried with the Standish-Sterling Community School District less deductibles and copays.

Mechanics and Custodians who are currently enrolled in the district health care plan shall receive up to Full Family health insurance paid by the Employer, less deductibles and co-pays. An employee who has full family or 2-person health care coverage will have a deductible of \$3,000. An employee who has single health care coverage will have a deductible of \$1,500.

Secretaries who are currently enrolled in the district health care plan:

The district will pay 80% of the single subscriber rate.

The employee shall pay the required deductibles and co-pays.

Paraprofessionals, Cooks, and Bus Drivers who are currently enrolled in the district health care plan:

The district will pay 70% of the single subscriber rate.

The employee shall pay the required deductibles and co-pays.

Option Payments/Cash-in-Lieu:

2023-2026 = \$450

All current employees (as of June 1, 2011) may receive their option payment per year to use for options, health care coverage, or as cash-in-lieu to be paid at the end of the school year.

A current employee who is not enrolled in health care as of June 1, 2011 may use their annual board option payment to enroll in district health care but will not be eligible for any additional percentage paid to health care by the Board of Education.

New employees (hired after June 1, 2011) are not eligible to enroll in the district health plan or receive the option payment/cash-in-lieu payment.

B. General Provisions

- 1. When employment is interrupted, benefit coverage for eligible employees will continue until the end of the current month, or until the next premium is due, whichever is later.
- 2. Benefits for all employees shall become effective on the first day of the month after he/she has attained seniority.
- 3. All benefits shall be subject to the standard provisions set forth in the policy or policies.

APPENDIX C

Standish Sterling ESP/Standish-Sterling Community Schools GRIEVANCE REPORT FORM

Grievance	Number:	School Building:			
Grievant:	Classification:				
Date Caus	se of Grievance Occurred:				
LEVEL 1.	. Date Grievance was first presented to Building Principal or Supervisor:				
LEVEL 2.	Date of filing written Grievance:				
A. 1.	misinterpreted, or misapplied):	d Section of Master Agreement allegedly violated,			
2.	Relief Sought:				
	Signature of SSESP Representative Date:	Signature of Grievant Date:			
B.	Disposition of Principal (Or Supervisor) and	Other Administrator's Disposition:			
	Signature of Principal or Supervisor	Date			

C.	Disposition of Grievant and/or Association: Satisfactory: Unsatisfactory:				
	Signature of SSESP President	Signature of Grievant			
	Date:	Date:			
<u>LEVE</u>	<u>L 3.</u>				
A.	Date Received by Superintendent or Design	gnee:			
B.	Disposition of Superintendent or Designee:				
	Signature of Superintendent	Date			
C.	Disposition of Grievant and/or Association	Satisfactory: Unsatisfactory:			
	Signature of SSESP President Sig	nature of Grievant			
	Date:	Date:			
<u>LEVE</u>	L 4.				
A.	Date Submitted to Arbitration:				
	Date of Decision	Decision Attached			